NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
& B B &E

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

DVN (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(fogether the "Group”| are principally engaged in the services
and design, infegration and insfallation of digital broadcasting
systems and development of related software and products and
provision of infernational financial market information and

selective customer data.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Room 130405,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HK
dollars unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial

statfements have been approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 26th April 2006.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have been

prepared under the historical cost convention.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management fo exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and esftimates are significants to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The adoption of new,/revised HKFRS

In 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised standards and
interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its
operations. The 2004 comparatives have been amended as
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required, in accordance with the relevant requirements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events affer the Balance Sheef Date

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenues

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 31 Inferests in Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Insfruments: Recognition and
Measurement

HKAS Int 15 Operating leases — Incentives

HKFRS 2 Sharebased Payments

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Confinued)

The adoption of new,/revised HKFRS (Continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14,
16,17,18,19,21,23, 24,27, 28, 31, 33 and HKASInt 15
did not result in substantial changes to the Group's accounting
policies. In summary:

- HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority inferest,
share of net aftertax results of associates and other
disclosures.

— HKASs 2, 7,8, 10, 12, 14,16, 17, 18, 19, 23, 27,
28, 31, 33 and HKAS-Int 15 had no material effect on
the Group's policies.

- HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group's policy.
The functional currency of each of the consolidated entities
has been re-evaluated based on the guidance to the
revised standard. All the Group entities have the same
functional currency as the presentation currency for
respective entity financial statements.

- HKAS 24 has offected the identification of related parties
and some other related-party disclosures.

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a change in
the accounting policy relating fo the classification of available-
for-sale financial asses.

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for sharebased payments. Until 3 1st December
2004, the provision of share options fo employees did not result
in an expense in the income statements. Effective on 1st January
2005, the Group expenses the cost of share options in the income
stafement. As a fransitional provision, the cost of share options
granted affer 7th November 2002 and had not yef vested on
1st January 2005 was expensed refrospectively in the income
statement of the respective periods (Note 2.15).
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2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38 results in a
change in the accounting policy for goodwill. Until 31st
December 2004, goodwill was:

- Amortised on a straight line basis over a period ranging
from 5 to 20 years; and

- Assessed for an indication of impairment ot each balance
sheet date.

In accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 3 (Note 2.6):

The Group ceased amortisation of goodwill from 1st

January 2005;

- Accumulated amortisation as at 3 1st December 2004
has been eliminated with a corresponding decrease in
the cost of goodwill;

— From the year ended 3 1st December 2005 onwards,

goodwill is tested annually for impairment, as well as

when there is an indication of impairment.

The Group has reassessed the useful lives of its infangible assets
in accordance with the provisions of HKAS 38. No adjustment
was resulted from this reassessment.

All changes in the accounting policies have been made in
accordance with the transition provisions in the respective
standards, wherever applicable. All standards adopted by the
Group require refrospective application other than:

= HKAS 39 — does not permit fo recognise, derecognise
and measure financial assets and liabilities in accordance
with this standard on a retrospective basis. The Group
applied the previous SSAP 24 “Accounting for investments
in securities” fo investments in securities for the 2004
comparative information. The adjustments required for
the accounting differences between SSAP 24 and HKAS
39 are defermined and recognized at 1st January 2005.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

- HKFRS 2 — only retrospective application for all equity
instruments granted after 7th November 2002 and not
vested at 1st January 2005; and

- HKFRS 3 — prospectively affer 1st January 2005.
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The adoption of HKFRS 2 resulted in: KB B EmELERE25REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—_EThF _ZTTMF
FHIT TET

Increase in employee share-based VAR S A5t 01 B B

compensation reserve B 38 0 3,998 2,665
Increase in accumulated losses RETE B N 2,665 1,332
Increase in administrative expenses 1T g N 1,333 1,333
Increase in basic loss per share BRI EAEEE N HK$0.01 HK$0.01

No early adoption of the following new/revised Standards or
Inferprefations that have been issued but are not yet effective.
The Company has not commenced the assessment of the impact
of the adoption of such Standards or Interpretfations.

HKAS 19 (Amendment]

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans
and Disclosures

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

HKFRS-nt 3 Emission Rights

HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains A lease

HKFRSInt 5 Rights to Interests Arising from

Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

HKFRS 4 (Amendment)

Financial Guarantee Contracts
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up fo
31st December.

[a)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered

when assessing whether the Group confrols another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is fransferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly affributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially o their fair values af the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the

income statement (see Note 2.6).

Infercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
fransactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset fransferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

[a)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated af cost less provision for impairment losses. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

(b]  Associates and jointly controlled entity (*JCE")
Associates and JCE are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates and JCE are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investments in associates and JCE include goodwill (net of
any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition (see
Note 2.6).

The Group's share of ifs associates’ and JCE's postacquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
postacquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative postacquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. VWhen the Group's share of
losses in an associate or JCE equals or exceeds ifs interests in the
associate or JCE, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or JCE.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates or JCE are eliminated fo the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates or JCE. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates and JCE have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associates
and JCE are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of associates and JCE are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3& 8 8

2.2

FEEHBE (B

e (@

(o] KB AGE)
EARRBIZEERBRA > RITEARZIK
B AMEHRRERRERT IR - HEA
Al Z EAEBARAHRE W R AR ©

(b BERFEIMEZERF]
BERRMAEAREMBASELEEE
A ENMEEHENERE  BENTE
20%-50% R ZREMAIE - BrE A BIFA &
EEREBEABRETHAANR » VIR ARATE
R AEERBENFMELEEEIRER
FEUR RS B 32 GRER (A REHRIE
B18) (RMEE2.6) »

AEBEERBRBE AN E RN
MBS EN B RIRNTER - MEGRBR
BRI AN FERERAESR - REREES
REBERFTH 2B RHEEESMIELAE - 40
AEBEE—FBEARME B0 E 2 EE
FRBBHEAEZMEARIMAE R 2

- BRREEMEEREYGR - AEET
ERE—FER  RIFAKEERBER
ME BB EATER ESHFELR

N2
<

o) 1 B

AEEEEBENRMS LR ZBHZHH
ARERWRIREBNE 2R EME N RIE
SV o BRIFPTERE EARED
R BRIAREREEIT T AL - BE Q5]
MEETLENEHBRERTRIFHNE -
DATEIR AR BRI R & — 2

EARRBIZEERBERA  REE ARG
SR IRERRAMEHIRRERELERES
R o BERRIMEEEEZRERARRIEL
B R M B ARK



2.3

24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
refurns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are subject
fo risks and refurns that are different from those of segments

operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a]  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are franslated into the functional
currency using the exchange rafes prevailing at the dates of the
fransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the seftlement of such fransactions and from the translafion af
year-end exchange rates of monetary assefs and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash

flow hedges or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation difference on
non-monefary items, such as equities classified as availablefor

sale financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in

equity.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
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2.4

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Confinued)

[c]  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assefs and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet:

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
franslated af average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated af the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
franslation of the nef investment in foreign entities are taken fo
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement

as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.
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2.5

2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wil
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straightline method to allocate cost to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Over the terms of the lease
18% to 30%

Office equipment 18% to 25%

Network equipment and toolings 25% to 33.3%

18% to 33.3%

leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, af each balance sheet date.

An assef's carrying amount is written down immediately fo ifs
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Intangible assets

[a]  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assefs of the acquired subsidiary/associate/jointly controlled
entity af the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities is included in intangible
assefs. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in
investments in associates. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the

carrying amount of goodwill relafing to the entity sold.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
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2.6

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b]  Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred on
development projects are recognised as an infangible asset
where the technical feasibility and infenfion of completing the
product under development has been demonstrated and the
resources are available to do so, costs are identifiable and
there is an ability to sell or use the asset that will generate
probable future economic benefits. Such development costs are
recognised as an asset and amortised on a straightline basis
over a period of not more than 5 years to reflect the pattern in
which the related economic benefits are recognised.
Development costs that do not meet the above criteria are
expensed as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

(c)]  Film rights

Expenditure incurred for the acquisition of film rights is capitalised.
The film rights is included in intangible assets and is amortised
either using the sum-ofdigit method over the terms of the licensing
period or on a straightline basis over 20 years for perpetual
film rights.

Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assef's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped af the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
unifs).
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2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

Prior to 1st January 2005, investment securities are stated af

cost less any provision for impairment losses.

The carrying amounts of individual financial assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values
have declined below the carrying amounts. When a decline
other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of such
securifies will be reduced to the fair value. The impairment loss
is recognised as an expense in the income statement. This
impairment loss is written back fo the income statement when
the circumstances and events that led to the write-downs or
write-offs cease fo exist and there is persuasive evidence that
the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable
future.

Subsequent to the adoption of HKAS 39 from 1st January 2005:
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables and availablefor-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

(a]  loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or deferminable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no infention of trading the
receivable. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assefs. Lloans and receivables

are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet

(Note 2.10).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
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2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Availableforsale financial assets

Availablefor-sale financial assefs are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management infends to dispose of the financial assets within

12 months of the balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on frade-
date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assefs are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all loans and receivables and available-
forsale financial assets. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assefs have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assefs are subsequently carried af fair value. Lloans
and receivables are carried af amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of non-monetary securities classified
as availableforsale are recognised in equity. When securities
classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the income
statement as gains or losses from investment securities.

The fair values of unlisted securities are defermined by using
valuation fechniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
fransactions, reference fo other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.
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2.8

29

2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Availableforsale financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below ifs cost is considered in determining
whether the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for availableforsale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement — is removed
from equity and recognised in the income stafement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity insfruments

are not reversed through the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the firstin, firstout (FIFO) method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and other direct costs. It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially af fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
inferest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the income sfafement.

2.8

2.9

2.10

FEEHBE (B

BBEE (B

(b]  AIHUEMTFEEE B
AEEENGEE BHERAFERTERIES
FRIRI B E S A S B EHERRIE
HE REEARME ZRAES  NEEE
FERLIRER - @EBEFATEER
BAES R E FTREEREKRANE - W5
FEEARBERRA L EMHEELER
B - BIEREEE (RIBK A RE AT
BEZER  BaYBEENEREER A
MR IEABERBETE) 88 EaT
3 - WRIKER AR - RIER AR
T AER OREBE NS BB KRR
] o

FE
TFERKRAH AT EIHEME T 2 BIEET
fR o IXANIZ R STHIARTE - Bm RESR
mEI R AN BIERETA - FAE RS
T - HthEHEAA - ETEIEEERR - 7]
ERFEREREFERETNEEE - A
EEEHEERE -

B 5% &k 2t EYIRR

B 5 R EMRUIRR ISR A A EERHER -
HRgEMERMNIEAERERAN - WRE
RERE - EARBEBRBNAREARER
IR REUPR R R A 2 AR - A
1R B 5 M E AR AR AR E AR - B
BeEAEERNERRHAKRASRER
ERERE - REREERAN - BESBER
AR MR

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3& 95



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other shortterm highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares and preference shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially ot fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers,
levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised costf; any difference between the proceeds (net of
fransaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective inferest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group

has an unconditional right fo defer setlement of the liability for
at least 12 months affer the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Deferred income tax

2.15

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
fransaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,
it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income fax liability is seftled.

Deferred income fax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be ufilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(a]  Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution plans,
under which the Group pays fixed confributions into separate
entities. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due
and are not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior fo vesting fully in the
confributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
fo the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
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2

2.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equityseftled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The fotal amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is defermined by reference fo the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
At each balance sheet date, the entity revises ifs estimates of
the number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the income sfatement, and a corresponding adjustment
fo equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable fransaction
costs are credited fo share capital (nominal value) and the share
premium when the options are exercised.

[c)]  Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue fo employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and matemity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(d]  Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where confractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required fo seftle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in sefflement is defermined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in setflement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and
services, net of value-added tax and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as

follows:

(a)  Design, integration and installation of platform for
digital broadcasting systems

Revenue from the design, integration and installation of platforms

for digital broadcasting systems is recognised upon the

satisfactory completion of each installation and acceptance by

the customers.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Confinued)

(b)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the custfomer has accepted
the products and collectibility of the related receivables is

reasonably assured.

[c)]  Rendering of services
Service fee income for provision of infernational financial market
information and selective consumer data is recognised on a

straightline basis over the period of the service contract.

(d]  leasing income

Revenue from the leasing of digital broadcasting network
equipment and technical know-how and related software is
recognised on an agreed proportion of net subscription income
received from ultimate customers of the lessee in accordance

with the respective agreements.

(e) Licensing income
Licensing income is recognised when the licensees produce the
licensed products in accordance with the corresponding licensing

agreements.

(f) Interest income

Inferest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired,
the Group reduces the carrying amount fo its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as inferest income. Interest income on impaired
loans is recognised either as cash is collected or on a cost —

recovery basis as conditions warrant.
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2.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

(a]  Operating lease

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are refained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (nef of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income

statement on a straightline basis over the period of the lease.

(b)  Finance lease

leases of assefs where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as fo
achieve a constant rafe on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in current and non-current borrowings. The inferest
element of the finance cost is recognised in the income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

2.19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company's shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it fo a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest risk and

price risk|, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow inferestrate

risk.

(a) Market risk

The Group mainly operates in China and Hong Kong and the
major exchange rate risks arise from fluctuations in the USD,
HKD and Renminbi ("RMB”). For majority of fransactions
conducted in Hong Kong, both sales and costs of sales are
denominated in the same currency. For operations in China, all
revenues are denominated in RMB, while part of the purchases
are denominated in USD or HKD. Given the unpegging of
RMB against USD announced in July 2005, the Directors expect
that it brings favorable impacts on the Group’s future financial
performance. The Group'’s bank deposits are predominately
denominated in USD, HKD and RMB. The Group did not have
any borrowings since it repaid the RMB bank loan during the
reporting period. During the year, the Group has not entered
info any hedging arrangements relating fo foreign currency

exchange risk.

(b)  Credit risk

The Group's frade receivables are mainly receivables from the
PRC customers arising from sales of goods and design,
infegration and installation of platform for digital broadcasting
systems. According to industrial practice and past payment
patterns, the sefflements of such trade receivable balances are
slow. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has policies
in place to review the recoverability of trade receivable balances
at each balance sheet date and assess the adequacy of provision

for impairment.
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3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)]  Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit faciliies. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, Group aims to maintain flexibility in

funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

[d]  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rafes.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of availableforsale financial assets is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on market

conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future confractual cash
flows atf the current market interest rate that is available to the

Group for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below.

3.2
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& MARNEENHTE - ARNERER

AN AL SRR AR IEE -

(d) B RERFELFERER
HRAKEYBEAGTEEE - HAKEN
WAMEER S IREER EANETIHHN TR
BHNTE -

DN RBEEMGE
AHHEMBEEZ A
BT - AREERTE
AR AR BRR

A EEEAGEETEM
REE B ZBITHIRER

B Z YR N E SR AR Z EEREE
EERE  IMEAEEAABEZRE -
AREMS - BWBREZAABERASHE
AEZBUSBTAZRTHSENE - i
AREBAREREMEHE -

PR ATl H & FUER

HEMFE S RIER G - WRBBELR
MEMRZETHE - BREREBHEBR ME
ERAENERIREFHTRR o

AEERARIGRIEH AR RBRR © Fifsz
SHEERERE R IEESENERERS
R BHERABNR T —MERFEHEERARE
FREEFE R AR 2 At MR T &

A
afg ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3& ] 03



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

4.1

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income faxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determined the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are fransactions and calculation
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such defermination
is made.

Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment used by the Group are long-
lived. The annual depreciation charges are sensitive to the
estimated useful lives the Group allocates to each type of fixed
assets. Management performs annual reviews to assess the
appropriateness of their estimated useful lives. Such reviews
take info account the technological changes, prospective
economic utilisation and physical condition of the assets
concermed.

Management also regularly reviews whether there are any
indications of impairment and will recognise an impairment loss
if the carrying amount of an asset is lower than its recoverable
amount which is the greater of its net selling price or its value in
use in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.7. In defermining the value in use, management assess the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal
af the end of its useful life. Estimates and judgements are applied
in determining these future cash flows and the discount rafe.
Management estimates the future cash flows based on certain
assumptions, such as the market competition and development

and the expected growth in subscriber base.
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4.3

4.4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group estimates the provision for doubtful accounts related
fo its frade receivables by evaluating specific accounts where it
has information that certain customers are unable to meet their
financial obligations. In these cases, the Group uses judgment,
based on the latest available facts and business practices or
circumstances, including but not limited to, its business
relationship with the customer and the cusfomer’s current credit
status based on third party credit reports and other known market
factors, to record specific provisions. These provisions are re-
evaluated and adjusted as additional information received affects
the amounts estimated.

The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period
would differ if the Group utilises different estimates. An increase
in the Group's provision for doubtful accounts would increase

its recorded operating expenses and decrease its current assets.

Inventories

The Group estimates the provision for inventories based on the
best available facts and circumstances, including but not limited
to, the inventories’ own conditions (i.e. whether they are
damaged or become wholly or partially obsolete), their market
selling prices, prospects of sale, estimated costs of completion
and esfimated costs fo be incurred for their sale. The provisions
are re-evaluated and adjusted when additional information

received affects the amount estimated.

4.3

4.4
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION
Primary reporting format - business segments
At 31st December 2005, the Group is organised info two main
business segments:

(i) Digital broadcasting business ("DVB business”) — Services
and design, integration and installation of digital
broadcasting systems and development of related
software and products; and

[i)  Other — Provision of international financial market
information and selective consumer data

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3& ] 06

SEEH

FEHERN - XX HER
RZZZRF+_A=1—1  ~"EEA%
BREMEAIREHDE

) BBERERERDR - HHERRER
ARTS - RARERAK - T3 - KRN
| REMNFE &

i) HEir — RHEBEERESBRHSERNE
EHBEEBIBIR -



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEEHE (B

The segment results (restated) for the year ended 3 1st BHE_TTNF+ _A=+—HILFEND
December 2004 are as follows: ERERAAT
DVB business Other Unallocated Group
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
HIEHER
EREE IS Hity Aol REE
FHET FHET T FHETT
Turnover L 152,806 16,430 - 169,236
Operating (loss)/profit s (B518) aA (56,200) 2,535 - (53,665)
Finance costs BB (1,060) (1,060
Share of loss of a jointly D16 FLEE
controlled entity B ZERE (1,032 (1,032)
Loss before income tax HBRFT ST A1 (55,757)
Income tax expense PS> H -
Loss for the year FEEE (55,757)
The segment results for the year ended 31st December 2005 BHE_TTRF T -_A=1T—"HILFEND
are as follows: IRLEIT
DVB business Other Unallocated Group
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
HHFHR
EREE S Hity Aol REE
FHET FHET T T
Turnover HE 286,375 18,243 304,618
Operating (loss)/profit s (B18) aA (35,091) 1,711 - (33,380)
Finance costs BB (137) (137
Share of loss of a jointly 16 FLEE
controlled entity B ZER (275) (275)
Share of loss of an associate (130) (130)
Loss before income tax HIBR PR B AT E 1R (33,922)
Income tax expense FrSH 2 th -
Loss for the year REE R (33,922
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

R B BaE (90
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Confinued) 5 SWEE (B
There are no sales between business segments. FB 0 E 2 B A SHE o
The segment assets and liabiliies at 3 1st December 2004 and BHE_ZTTMF+ —_A=1t—"HILFEND
capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows: MWEERBERZFEEARRAT
DVB business Other Unallocated Group
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
HAEHR
RS H A Ao REH
THET THET THETT THETT
Assets BE 267,697 8,103 - 275,800
Inferest in a jointly controlled entity — PAFL[EIIZEHIE §8#E 25 6,685 = = 6,685
Total assets BERE 274,382 8,103 - 282,485
liabilities =L 126,886 8,948 - 135,834
Capital expenditure B 16,274 38 - 16,312
The segment assets and liabilities at 3 1st December 2005 and BHE_TTRFt _A=1—"HIFENS
capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows: MEERBBERZFEEARRAT
DVB business Other Unallocated Group
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
HHFHER
EREE S Hity Aol REE
THET FHET THETT THETT
Assets BE 385,307 6,509 - 391,816
Inferest in a jointly controlled entity — PAFL[EIIEHIE 581 25 6,410 = = 6,410
Interest in associates REtE N Rl 6,682 - - 6,682
Total assets BEE 398,399 6,509 — 404,908
Liabilities BiE 222,003 9,362 - 231,365
Capital expenditure BRI 9,262 142 - 9 404
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and DEEEFEZEEYE - WE KRB - B
equipment, intangible assets, inventories, receivables and BE - FE - BRURFUBERLERST °

operating cash.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Confinued)

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and

equipment (Note 6] and intangible assets (Note 7).

Secondary reporting format - geographical
segments

The Group's two business segments operate in three main

geographical areas:

(i) Mainland China — Services and design, infegration and
installation of digital broadcasting systems and

development of related software and products;

(i)  Hong Kong — Services and design, integration and
installation of digital broadcasting systems and
development of related software and products and
provision of infernational financial market information and

selective consumer data; and

liii)  Other Southeast Asian countries — Provision of
international financial market information and selective

consumer data

FWEH (B
DEHBERRELLERE -

BRFXBRABEYE - BB Mk (T
) REREE (HEE) B o

REEHERX — HEDEH

REBRBEFNR AT 2REE

i) HER-BIBEERS  ARE
X T3 - RR MRt RERM
FE

i) FHE-BEBRREBRS  RHK
X BTEE - R MR RERM
FEMEHER SR SEMMEE
HEEHE &

i) HREDER-RHEERSRMS
BEARBEREEHE -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

iR BB sE ®

S SEGMENT INFORMATION (Confinued)

There are no sales between geographical segments.

Turnover

5

SWEH (B
AR 2 EEEITIHE -

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZEThEF —ZTEF
FHIT T
Mainland China R B A 247,282 150,927
Hong Kong i 50,236 13,527
Other Southeast Asian countries HEf R R 7,100 4,782
304,618 169,236
Turnover is allocated based on the countries in which customers EEBIZBEEMEH DR
are located.
Total assets HEE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
eSS T — e
TFET TET
Mainland China AR B A 365,643 190,046
Hong Kong E 24,604 84,958
Other Southeast Asian countries HEMERERER 1,569 796
391,816 275,800
Jointly controlled entity HAEEZEHIER 6,410 6,685
Associates /NS 6,682 -
404,908 282,485

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are

located.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Confinued)

SWEH (B

Capital expenditure BFHAX
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TERF _TTOF
FHIT TFET
Mainland China AR B A 1,225 11,355
Hong Kong B 8,179 4,957
Other Southeast Asian countries HEMERmEEEK - -
9,404 16,312

Capital expenditure is allocated based on where the assets are
located.

BRI IRBE TR DR ©

Analysis of turnover by category EXEoNESH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
eSS TR — e
FAET FAET
Revenue from design, infegration 18 - S R R EUE
and installation of platforms for BIERGEEZ WA
digital broadcasting systems 12,106 28,298
Revenue from sale of goods BErmiEERA 252,594 118,467
Revenue from provision of RHBEBRE IS E M MAEE
infernational financial market HEEBURER 2 WA
information and selective
consumer datfa 18,243 16,431
leasing income HERA 4,724 4,160
licensing income REZEIA 16,951 1,880
304,618 169,236
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

iR B B & (59)
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 6 YE  BERSRE — F%E
Network Nefwork
under leasehold ~ equipment COffice Furniture Motor
construction improvements  and foolings  equipment  and fixiures vehicles Tofal
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE S
TR MEEE ZEREA NS HBRREE B ‘st
FATL FHET FHET FAET FAET FAET FAET
At 1st January 2004 A _2ZMFE—F—H
Cost B 29,336 2,888 56,086 11,523 2,257 4,304 106,394
Accumulated depreciation REtiNE - (1,834) (30,484 (8,555) (1,144) (2,609) (44,626)
Net book amount IREFE 29336 1,054 25,602 2,968 1,113 1,695 61,768
Year ended BE_ZTHE
31st December 2004 +ZA=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FMREFE 29,336 1,054 25,602 2,968 1,113 1,695 61,768
Additions B = 985 9,558 504 213 - 11,260
Disposals e - - - (1) - - (1)
Transfer fo inventory (note 31(b)  BZERFE (BitaE 31(b)) (18,288) - 557 - - - (17,731)
Depreciation neE = (561) (15,204 (2,145) (387 (656) (18,953)
Net book amount IREFE 11,048 1,478 20,513 1,326 939 1,039 36,343
At 31st December 2004 R _EBZME+"A=1+—H
Cost B 11,048 3,873 63,556 12,024 2,470 4,304 Q7,275
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiE - (2,395) (43,043) (10,698 (1,531) (3,265) (60,932)
Net book amount IREFE 11,048 1,478 20,513 1,326 939 1,039 36,343
Year ended BETZSLF
31st December 2005 +ZA=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FMREFE 11,048 1,478 20,513 1,326 939 1,039 36,343
Exchange differences SNEZER 60 12 85 25 8 9 199
Additions B = 89 78 751 26 = Q44
Disposals HE = - - - 4) - 4)
Transfer HE (11,108) - 11,108 - - - -
Depreciation nE = (1,009) (13,595) (1,822) (327) [325) (17,078)
Net book amount IREFE = 570 18,189 280 642 723 20,404
At 31st December 2005 R _EERE+"A=+—H
Cost B = 3,992 74,979 12,858 2,512 4,339 98,680
Accumulated depreciation REtiNE - (3,422) [56,790) (12,578) (1,870) (3,616) (78,276)
Net book amount IREFE - 570 18,189 280 642 723 20,404
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP
(Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$593,000 (2004: HK$693,000)
has been expensed in marketing, selling and distribution costs
and HK$16,485,000 (2004: HK$18,206,000) in

administrative expenses.

Lease rentals amount o HK$36,000 (2004: HK$36,000)
relafing to the lease of office equipment are included in the
income stafement.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - COMPANY

Pk BERRMG - x%KE (B

RTIGHER « $HE RO SRR A RITHARA
XIHZTERX D RIR593,0008 T (ZF
T4 : 693,000 7T) K 16,485,000/
TL(ZZETME ¢ 18,206,000 7T) °

AR EHAZ R RS 36,0008 (=
BTG 36,000 7T) tHAMGER -

W% BEREME — FOF

Office Network
equipment equipment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
/NS R et
FET FET FET
At 31st December 2004 R-ETNFE—F—ABR
and 31st December 2005 —ZEThRF+_A=1+—H
Cost R AN 18 939 Q57
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiE (18) (939) (957)
Net book amount BEEFE - - -

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3& ] ] 3



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

iR BB sE ®

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 7 EEEE —FS5H
Deferred
development
Goodwil coss Film rights Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EES ERERABAA TR @ar
THT THT TET THT
At Tst January 2004 R_ZEMF—-H—H
Cost %N 95,905 43,965 49 309 189,179
Accumulated amortisation R ORI EEE
and impairment losses (95,905) (16,213) (49,309) (161,427)
Net book value REFE - 27752 - 27752
Year ended 31st December 2004 HZE-ZTWF+-_A=1+—HIFE
Opening net book amount FREHE = 27,752 - 27,752
Additions NE = 5,052 - 5,052
Amortisation charge BT - (4,729 - (4,729)
Closing net book amount FREMFE - 28,705 - 28,705
At 31st December 2004 RZZETME+=A=1—H
Cost A 95,905 49017 49 309 194,231
Accumulated amortisation S EHERRESR
and impairment losses (95,905) (20,942) (49,309) [166,156)
Net book value RHFE - 28,075 - 28,075
Year ended 31st December 2005 HZE—ZTRF+-_A=1+—HIFE
Opening net book amount FORmHE = 28,075 = 28,075
Additions NE = 8,460 - 8,460
Amortisation charge BT - (4,569 - (4,569)
Wiite-off s - (1,112) - (1,112)
Exchange difference MNEZR = 26 - 26
Closing net book amount FRIREFE - 30,880 - 30,880
At 31st December 2005 RZZETREF-A=1—H
Cost XA = 56,397 49 309 105,706
Accumulated amortisation R EERREEE
and impairment losses - (25,517 (49,309] (74,826)
Net book value RHFE - 30,880 - 30,880
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

RRELRZRE

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)

“ZETHF —ETNEF

FHIT T

(&%)

Unlisted investments, at cost IELEMIRE - BRANET 67,732 67,732
Provision for impairment loss BB (67,732) 67,732)
loan to a subsidiary m—RMEBARMELE 2 ER 25,284 25,284
Amounts due from subsidiaries U BB~ B FRIA 549,221 483,338

Provision for amounts due from JFEYIBTB N B FRIB B

subsidiaries (465,060) (423,011)
109,445 85,611

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interestree and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in nofe 34.

B AR RRGEHI REER R RS - B

42 [E] T AR

BT 2MBERRZFHITENMIEESS -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

9 INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
The Company has a 50% inferest in a jointly controlled entity,
Jiangsu Hongtian Broad Communication Co., ltd, an unlisted
company incorporated in the PRC, which provides services and
design, integration and installation of digital broadcasting

equipment and sells related products.

R—RiRAEFERZRE
ARAR—RARZEE R TAH AR RGN
BERAB KNP BEEMKILZIFLETR
FIBEBS0% R » % MR EUS E IR
%5 W13 REK - RRNMEEERH
&=

Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
e
THETT T
Beginning of the year REFH] 6,685 7717
Share of loss of a jointly FEE K AEFIERBER
controlled entity (275) (1,032)
6,410 6,685

Details of the jointly controlled entity as at 3 1st December 2005
were as follows:

ZHRAEHERR _ETRAF+ _A=1—
BZFEIT

Profit/(loss)

Assets Liabilities Revenues for the year

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Particulars of NFE A
registered capital AMERER BE BfE Ygs / (E18)
Rmb ARE TET TET TET TR
90,000,000 27,751 6,207 1,302 (550)
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10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 10 RMEEATER

Group

REE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZTERF _TTOF
FHIT THT
At date of incorporation FEEARSZ B E 6,754 -
Exchange difference X ERR 58 -
Share of associates’ results DIEE RN E N RIEER (130) -
6,682 -
Details of the associates, all of which are unlisted and AEBBR _ZTRHF+_A=1+—HA3E
incorporated in the PRC, as at 3 1st December 2005, were as i R AR B R AR S BB A B AR AR

follows: BT

Particulars of Profit/(loss) % Interest
Name registered capital Assefs  Liabilities  Revenues for the year held

Rmb  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

wmA AR

#rE EalifE N BE =N Wz (B8) B
ARE TETT T TET TET

BHEBHFBEHER 20,000,000 19,237 530 783 (429) 30
NG

BREENVHFERERBE 10,000,000 9,899 4,808 - - 22.5
BIR A
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

11 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS 11 ERHEe
Group
REE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
e T — e sfeS
FET FET
Deposits for purchasing of film rights BEF R #Em 2 IES 18,692 18,692
Provision for impairment losses BB (18,692) (18,692)
12 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 12 F#tHESRMEE
Availableforsale financial assets include the following: AHEECHEEREATSIE
Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TTRE  _ZTTWF
FAET FAET
(Restated)
(E31))
Unlisted securities outside EBAIMERIE
Hong Kong ishi<v) 35,956 35,956
Provision for impairment loss BEBERE (35,000) (35,000)
Q56 Q56
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13

14

INVENTORIES 13 8

Group

REE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TERF _—TENF
FHET FET
Raw materials RAR 25,842 23,669
Finished goods 2K 24,360 18,819
Work in progress E8m 27,695 15117
/7,897 57,605

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included

in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$226,304,000

(2004: HK$116,650,000).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

HERRAX L AR EEmKANFERAR
/226,304,000 T (ZZETMF :

116,650,000%7T) °

14 WHRHMEIRE

Group
REE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EThF _TTMF
FHIT THT
Trade receivables FEUWE 5518 153,336 58,131
less: provision for impairment R - FEUGORE R
of receivables (17.,833) (4,558)
Trade receivables — net FEWE 5508 135,503 53,573
Prepayments TR 10,619 16,377
Other receivables H e R IE 12,147 18,411
158,269 88,361
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

iR BB sE ®

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 14
At 31st December 2005 and 2004, the aging analysis of the

HE&EMESI&%IE (Zﬁ)

trade receivables is as follows: E| J,f\uﬁlff S IE\ZEEQ%}WQDT :

Group

AREE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZTTHF —ETNF
FATT FETT
0 - 30 days 0z 30K 58,084 42,027
31- 60 days 31 £ 60K 16,366 1,016
- 90 days 61 290K 6,417 576
Over 90 days i@ 90 K 72,469 14,512
153,336 58,131

15 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 15 EEHSBRITER

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had bank deposits

pledged as securities for its bank credit facilities.

EA%E B AEBARITEREIERERT

EXRBEE BTG -

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 BERRSFEE/Y
Group Company
REH /N

2005 2004 2005 2004
—TTRE TTNFE  ZETRFE _ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FAT
Cash at bank and in hand ~ $R1T R FEEE 33,218 56,057 1,885 7,053
Shortterm bank deposits R ERIRTT 7K 48,451 - - -
81,669 56,051 1,885 7,053

The effective inferest rate on shortterm deposits was 1.30%

(2004: Nil); these deposits have an average maturity of 6 days.
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 BEARIRAMEFTR

Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ETHE —_TTWHE
TETT THET
Trade payables AN F 123,409 54,658
Deposits received 2 iz e 60,704 17,765
Accrued expense fEsT &R 12,912 17,109
Other payables H A e TR 11,650 19,651
Provision for preference dividends — B5Ei% S5 22,610 21,796
231,285 130,979
At 31st December 2005 and 2004, the ageing analysis of the R_ZEZERFR_ZFZEWNF T+ _A=1—
frade payables is as follows: B ENEZTIRZERATOT
Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—_TERE _TTMHF
THETT THETT
0 - 30 days 0& 30K Q1,836 18,889
31- 60 days 31 260X 10,347 18,005
61 =90 days 61 290K 4,163 1,142
Over 90 days #83@ 90 K 17,063 16,622
123,409 54,658
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

iR BB sE ®

18 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 18 MEHEE
Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
e
TETT THET
Wholly repayable within five years ZBRAFAZEEE 80 116
Current portion BIHEAERSD (36) (36)
44 80
At 31st December 2005, the Group's finance lease liabilities RZZEZAF+_A=1—H F~EEZR
were repayable as follows: EHERBRTIAEER ¢
Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERF _TTOF
FET FET
Within one year —F R 43 43
In the second year fo fifth year FE_FEFRF 54 Q7
Q7 140
Future finance charges on MEHERKZBEEM
finance leases (17) (24)
Present value of finance HEHEREHRE
lease liabilities 80 116
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18 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (Continued) 18 MRHE ()
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: MEHSREREWT
Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—_TERE _TTMHF
THETT FAET
Within one year —FR 36 36
In the second year fo fifth years FE_FEENF 44 80
80 116
19 SHARE CAPITAL 19 EF
Authorised
5 % redeemable Ordinary shares
preference shares of HK$0.10 each
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
EEBRA
5% PIEEIE LR EEO0.10BTERR
R #E TET k= TAT
At Tst January 2004 R-_ZZMF—-A—H 83,250,000 124,875 800,000,000 80,000
Reclassification in RRAREH S
share capital nofe(al(ii) (PR &¥(allii) (83,250,000) (124,875) 1,248,750,000 124,875
Increase in share capital ~ ARAIE AN
(nofelal(ii) (B (allii) - = 951,250,000 95,125
31st December 2004 RZZZMFE+_A=1—H = - 3,000,000,000 300,000
31st December 2005 RZZERF+_A=1—H = - 3,000,000,000 300,000
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

19 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

19 BFHE)
lssued and fully paid

5 % redeemable Ordinary shares
preference shares of HK$0.10 each
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
BEETREHR
5% AL B I HEO.10 BT L EMR
BB THT BmEE AT
At Tst January 2004 R-_ZTENF—H—H - 451,734,826 45173
lssue of shares [note [alli)) ~ FTEEERRIE (FTE(ali]) - 58,500,000 5,850
Exercise of share options 1T (A - 6,140,997 614
At 31st December 2004  R=ZZEWE+-A=+—H - 516,375,823 51,637
At Tst January 2005 RZZEZHE—H—H = 516,375,823 51,637
lssue of shares [note [alli)) ~ ZE{TRR (RTEE (a)li) - 58,500,000 5,850
Exercise of share options {11 BE AR AE - 8,542,665 855
At 31st December 2005 R ZZZERFE+-A=1+—H - 583,418,488 58,342

(i)

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement entered into
between the Company and Motorola-Dragon Investment,
Inc. ["Motorola-Dragon”) on 18th May 2004 (the
“Subscription Agreement”], Motorola-Dragon has
conditionally agreed fo subscribe for the Company’s new
ordinary shares in up to four tranches for a cash
consideration up to a maximum of US$33 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$257 .4 million). Pursuant
to the ordinary resolutions passed on 8th July 2004, the
Subscription Agreement was approved, confirmed and
ratified, and the Whitewash Waiver, the granting of
which was a condition of the First Tranche Completion,
was approved. The First Tranche of the Subscription
Agreement was completed on 15th July 2004 and the
Company issued to Motorola-Dragon 58,500,000 new
ordinary shares at a consideration of US$7.5 million.
The Second Tranche was completed on 14th January
2005. Accordingly, the Company issued to Motorola-
Dragon 58,500,000 new shares at a consideration of
US$7.5 million.
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BEBEAA R EMotorola-Dragon
Investment, Inc. ([Motorola-Dragon])
RZZEZTWFEA A +/\BFIZL 2R
ek ([REE %) * Motorola-Dragon
BIFHRIERBAQ B LR - A
ERORIBHRZHUHETT - ReR
Efxm A #Z33,000,000% 7T FBE R
#9257, 400,000%87T) ° RER=-F
THFEANRRBZ ERRARR -

ZRE RO EE - mRRER

AR (RE —HTER .2 I&MH) 7R
EERE - REHEE R _TZ
MELA+TRBTKE - NAFMA
Motorola-Dragon#1758,500,0008%
iR - fEE7,500,000% T ©
“HRBERN T RF—HATEAR
K Bt - AAAAMotorola
Dragon#1758,500,000/% % & i@
§% - YEfE7,500,000% T °



19 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

i)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed on 8th July
2004, the authorised preference share capital of
HK$124,875,000 divided into 83,250,000
convertible preference shares, none of which are issued,
was reclassified in authorised ordinary share capital of
HK$124,875,000 divided into 1,248,750,000
ordinary shares such that the authorised share capital of
the Company was HK$204,875,000 divided info
2,048,750,000 ordinary shares. Upon the
reclassification, the Company’s authorised ordinary share
capital was further increased to HK$300,000,000
divided info 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares by creation
of an additional 951,250,000 ordinary shares.

Share options

Pursuant to a share option scheme of the Company adopted on

26th June 2002, the Company can grant options fo Qualified

Persons for a consideration of HK$ 1.00 for each grant payable

by the Qualified Persons to the Company. The total number of

the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options

granted to each Qualified Person (including both exercised,

cancelled and outstanding options| in any twelve-month period

shall not exceed 1% of the shares then in issue.

19 BE (&)

i) JBER-_FETOFLANRBACZE
BMAZR  BETEBERRT
124,875,000 (nhB
83,250,000 Al AR E SR (I AR
B1T)) EFO B AR ARNEERA
124,875,000 (nA
1,248,750,0000% &3@A%) » BUEA
NAIZEERAR204,875,000%
T (9 BE2,048,750,000/% 38
) - BEFHEE  ARBZEEE
BT A B BIEERO51,250,000E /@
B% - #E— 12 INZE300,000,000/%
7L 0 (59 &3,000,000,000 /% 38
AR) o

B IR E
BEARTN T _FXA -+ NBEH
2 BARHERTE - ARERIAIABRA TR
B - A ERATERAR RS NED
FERRAE ) OO T2 RE - REMT @A
HIFA - BEBITEE T EBA LT ZBIRE
BB TRTIRG (BEETFE - 25T
SR M ARITE 2 BB BT SHAER
BEITRNZ1%

ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F3& ] 25



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
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19 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Share options (Continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and

their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

B (%8)

BRE(E

IR T REISCHERR B I AR RE 2 hnE 1T
TIEE ST

2005 2004
—_EThF —_ZTTMEF

Average Average

exercise exercise
price Options price Options
per share (thousands) per share (thousands)

HK$ HK$

BiFEY BiRFH
IEE RE A IEE BB
(%&7T) (F3) (L) (F)
At Tst January Rn—H—H 1.01 45914 1.01 52,055
Exercised 217 0.94 (8,543) 0.96 (6,1471)
At 31st December R+=—H=+—H 1.03 37,371 1.01 45914

Out of the 37,371 thousands outstanding options (2004:
45,914 thousand options), 24,878 thousand options (2004:
33,421 thousand) were exercisable. Options exercised in 2005
resulted in 8,543 thousand shares (2004: 6,141 thousand
shares) being issued at HK$0.94 each (2004: HK$0.96). The
related weighted average share price at the time of exercise

was HK$1.63 (2004: HK$1.67) per share.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dafe and exercise prices:

FA37,371,00013 M AR1TE 2 BAE (=F
TPULE 1 45,914,00013) & - 24,878,000
HEEIRE (P4 : 33,421,00013) 7]
17 - RZTTRF - RITEREREM
178,543, 000k H (ZEEWF
6,141,0008%) + E1TEFR0.94% T (=
TTPUE : 0.96/87T) - RITEREEZ N
TR B AER] 63T (CTETE
1.6787T) °

RERHRITRE 2 B 2IH A RATEE
LI

Exercise price Share options

per share 2005 2004

HK$ (thousands) (thousands)

BRRITHEE —ETRF T TEF

BTT (F12) (F13)

31/12/2006 —EERETA=1+—H 0.824 25,648 32,663
24/7/2008 (Note (i) —ZEENFEAZTIEAE (FEE) 1.47 11,723 13,251

Note (i) Pursuant fo the resolution passed on 20th June 2005, the exercise
period of the options was extended fo further three years, until

23rd July 2008.
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20 RESERVES - GROUP

20 e —SRE

Employee
sharebased
Share Confributed Exchange  Accumulated  compensation
premium surplus reserve losses reserve Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MR AR
RiDBE BB B 5 i ZHEE EERERE w@ir
TAx TAx AT TAT AT AT
Balance af st January 2004, R-ZZWF—F—R&H
as previously reported (R 2%k) 152,097 222,122 1,193 (393,197 - (17,785)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 2 RAEEMBEREENS 2 HE [1,332) 1,332 -
Balance af st January 2004, RZZZNFE—R—RksH
as restated (EE31) 152,097 222,122 1,193 (394,529 1,332 (17,785)
Exchange difference R =R - - (254) - - (254)
Loss for the year FREE = - - (61,067 - (61,067)
Total recognised loss for 2004 R-TTNERIAERE - - (254) (61,067 - (61,321)
Employees share option scheme EEBRESE
- value of employees services - EERBER - = = = 1,333 1,333
— proceeds from shares issued - BOIRMAETE 5,301 - - - - 5,301
Share issue expenses RipEIIH (2,925) = = = - (2,925)
Issue of ordinary shares BTEER 52,650 - - - - 52,650
55,026 - - - 1,333 56,359
Balance as af 31st December 2004 R-ZEWE+-A=+—H&H 207,123 222,122 939 (455,596 2,665 (22,747
Balance af st January 2008, RZZEZHFE—F—R&H
0s per above (mLE25) 207,123 222,122 939 (455,596 2,665 (22,747
Exchange difference R - - 1,692 - - 1,692
Loss for the year FRER = - - [39.734) - (39,734)
Total recognised loss for 2005 R hERIAER - - 1,692 (39,734) - (38,042)
Employees share opfion scheme EEBRESE
- value of employees services - EERBER - = = = 1,333 1,333
— proceeds from shares issued — BOIRMAEZTE 7171 - - - - 7171
Share issue expenses RHETER [2,925) - - - - 12,925)
Issue of ordinary shares BTEER 52,650 - - - - 52,650
56,896 - - - 1,333 58,229
Balance as ot 31st December 2005 R-ZERFE+-_A=+—RH&H 264,019 222,122 2,631 (495,330 3,998 (2,560)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

20 RESERVES - COMPANY

20 fEfE—-2F

Employee
share-based
Confributed ~ Accumulated  compensation
Share premium surplus losses reserve Tofal
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR R
HEeES
BARE EHRH% 251E1E HERE 1Bt
THEL THT THEL THEL THL
At Tst January 2004, RZZEENF—A—H
as previously reported (W0RI2R) 152,097 152,786 (302,033 - 2,850
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 2 RNEANBREE 2R T E = = (91 1,332 1,241
At Tst January 2004 s resfated 152,097 152,786 (302,124 1,332 4,001
Employees share option scheme EERBIEE
— Value of employess services —EERBEE = = = 1,333 1,333
— Proceeds from shares issued —BIRBIET 5,301 - - - 5,301
Share issue expenses BOLAR (2,925) - - - (2,925)
Issue of ordinary shares BinEITER 52,650 - - - 52,650
Loss for the year FREHE - - (6,834 - (6,834)
At 31st December 2004 RZEZMF+-A=1—H 207,123 152,786 (308,958 2,665 53,616
At Tst January 2003, R-ZZERE—A—H
as per above (I E251) 207,123 152,786 (308,958) 2,665 53,616
Employees share option scheme EERBIEE
~ Value of employees services —EERBEE - = = 1,333 1,333
— Proceeds from shares issued —BIRBIET 7171 - - - 7171
Share issue expenses BTERR (2,925) - - - (2,925)
Issue of ordinary shares BnETER 52,650 - - - 52,650
Loss for the year FRERE - - (46,209 - (46,209)
At 31st December 2005 RZZETRE+-_A=+—H 264,019 152,786 (355,167) 3,998 65,636

The contributed surplus of the Company and of the Group arose
from a scheme of arrangement that took place on 3 1st October
1989. Pursuant o section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”), a company incorporated in Bermuda is not
permitted o pay dividends while there are reasonable grounds
for believing that the company is, or would dfter the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable
value of the company’s assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account. Under the Act (as amended), the Company’s
contributed surplus may be distributed to shareholders upon
fulfilment of the aforementioned condition of the Act.
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2]

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right fo offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
fo the same tax authority. The following amounts, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated

balance sheet:

21 EBERKR
B BRI TN AN IR IR AR IR &
EHE R RIEE SN DR — RS E B
B8 AIRSERERSIREERBEEE - LT
RERHHEE . SREREAEERRER

25

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
“EERF —EEF
FATT FAT
Deferred tax assets fo be @A ARTUKE 2
recovered within 12 months RIERIBEE 10,986 7,536
Deferred tax liabilities to be =@ ARTUKE 2
recovered within 12 months FIERIEEE (10,9806) (7,536)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

21 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior fo offsefting
of balances within the same jurisdiction) during the year are as
follows:

2]

BIERER ()

RENEERIAEE R & B (RIER RLAE

[ AR IHRT) < BBIAT

Deferred tax assets B IEE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TERF —EEF
FET FET
At 1st January n—A—H 7,536 7,622

Credited /(charged) to PiBzEREE, S (8H)

profit and loss account 3,450 (86)
At 31st December R+—-—A=+—H 10,986 7,536
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Confinued) 21
Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried

forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit

through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses at 31st December 2005 of
HK$293,916,000 (2004: HK$303,221,000) to carry

forward against future taxable income and these tax losses will

BIERE (15)

ERHIEE E ()

EIEFTS B ERV GRS RIS - %%
AETE T TR BT 1R DA A B R SR B SR B M| 23R
MHERBENRAR - R_FFRF+ A=
T—H - NEEEE UK HARRERTHA
ZARMER IR IBREE/293,916,0008 7T (=
TZOEF : 303,221,000/7T)  MazEh

not expire. BEE& TSR
Deferred tax liabilities FAEHIRE &
Accelerated fox depreciation Deferred development costs Others Tofal
IRBIEHE BRERERA £t 5t
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—“TTRE —TTWNFE —FTRF —TIRE  —TThF  —TIWNF TR —TIRAE

AT TAx TAx TAx AT TAT AT TAT

At st Jonuary ®—A—A 2,257 3311 5,279 4311 = = 7.536 7,622
Charged/[credited| fo

income stafement MiERS S/ (BE) (68) (1,054) 540 968 2,978 - 3,450 (86)

At 31t December R+=A=+-H 2,189 2,257 5819 5,279 2,978 - 10,986 7,536
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

R B Bi&E ()
22 MINORITY INTERESTS 22 LPHERES
Included in minority inferests is US$ 15,000,000 (equivalent to BRELERREEZTAE 15,000 OOO%E
HK$116,250,000) preference shares issued by DVN (Group) (FBZEMR116,250,000%7T) Z AR
limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The BHTBAR] - KRBT (%)ﬁﬁﬁ@xﬁj ’ Ffr
preference shareholder has the right at any time starting from B2 BENR - E_ETETF A —HREE
1st July 2000 to exchange all (but not part) of its preference s - B R A 228 (MIEEDD)
shares into ordinary shares of the Company at the exchange BIRBRIBA QT 2 BB G RE-F
price which has been adjusted from HK$4.40 per share to ERFE-ATHBRMZAE T?&Tﬁ‘@?ﬁ
HK$4.13 per share, pursuant to the announcement dated 14th HXZRT‘%{ EB&k4. 40/%7%5@ ZEK
January 2005. The board of directors of the Company has the 1387 - ARE_ZT E‘tﬁ B1&
right, at ifs discrefion, to require the compulsory exchange of Ercﬂﬁ—rF'Eﬁ WARA T 2 BBz P (E
the preference shares at the exchange price at any time from MBI LGRS BAT20[E% 5
1st July 2001, provided that the average of the closing market BMERIOET » ARRZEFHERER
prices of the Company’s ordinary shares for the 20 trading ZRIR HARE R HI R bt 2 B -
days ending on the trading day immediately preceding the
date of giving notice of such compulsory exchange is not less
than HK$ 10
For the year ended 3 1st December 2005, preference dividend RIZFZAF+-_RA=1—H ' BHEELR
payable was accrued ot HK38.7 5¢cents (2004: HK38.7 5¢cents) H % AEAR38.75 B (ZZET M4 :
per share totaling HK$5,812,000 (2004: HK$5,812,000). 757%810) 5HR4EE055,812,0008 7T (=
Z\gmi : 5,812,000 7T) °
23 OTHER GAINS - NET 23 HftukE — BEE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TERF _TTOEF
THETT T
Interest income from bank balances  $R1TAEERF S U A 1,449 1,266
Other i 1,091 -
2,540 1,266
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EXPENSES BY NATURE 24 BHEESFEHER

Expenses included in cost of sales, marketing, selling and ER (BREHEEKS - M5 - HERDHK
distribution costs, administrative expense and other operating AR~ AT R E MR E RSO DT -

expenses are analysed as follows:

Group
REE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
“TTHFE ZTTWF
THETT FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAR 226,304 116,650
Cost of provision of financial and MR IHEEBIRKA
consumer data 3,697 3,550
Depreciation e 17,078 18,953
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & 1,281 990
Employee benefit expense (note 25) EERAMFX (K& 25) 28,912 30,392
Operating lease rentals on T RETFREHERS
land and buildings 4,474 4,612
Net exchange loss P X BRI 4 50
Other operating expenses including: Hith 18 25 2 815 -
Amortisation of deferred development costs T 7 B K AN 8 4,569 4,729
Provision for inventories FERE 7,254 6,878
Provisions for impairment of deposits, Bre - BWEZRA N
trade and other receivables H b e R IE R E R 15,365 15,357
Write-off of deferred development costs AR I 3 P 2N 1,112 -
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets & B B EFER - 23
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

MR B PR &E (@)
25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 25 {EREFIMAX
Group
REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TERE _TEMHF
THETT THETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Wages and salaries TENES 37,322 36,416
Share options granted to RYEENREE 2B

direcfors and employees 1,333 1,333
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKE AR — EREHETE 747 1,516
Termination benefits B BAE A 2 12
Unutilised annual leave ABAFER 316 68
long service payment RERBEREE 705 1,237
less: costs capitalised B BB AR (11,513) (10,190)
28,912 30,392

(a) Pension - defined contribution plans (a) RBRHKE-BEEHMRE

Contributions totaling HK$100,092 (2004
HK$92,511) were payable to the funds at the year-
end.
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25

(b)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 25 {EREFIMAX
Directors’ and senior management’s b) ZEFKESREEAEME
emoluments
The remuneration of every Director for the year ended RBE_ZZRF+_A=+—H%F
31st December 2005 is set out below: EHUESEHMSFHENT
Compen-
Employer's sation
Discrefion- confribution for loss
Name of ary Induce- Other fo pension  of office
director Fees Salary  bonuses  mentfee  benéfits (i) scheme  as director Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
RAREEE
BENT ik e BISEL mBEME EtERi) EEHK BOmE A5t
FET TET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson SRIELE - 120 - - 16 - - 136
Mr. Lui Pan, Terry BmkE 1,683 1,281 109 - 311 12 - 3,396
Ms. Cheung Sum Yu, Fiona SRR L = = = = 20 = = 20
Mr. Shaw Sun Kan, Gordon ~ BFAR &L = - - - 20 - - 20
M. Jerry Sze Jerry Sze = = = = 20 = = 20
Mr. lizhak Shenberg lizhak Shenberg 5t 4 = = = = = = = =
M:r. Chu Hon Pong REHSE 144 = = = 16 = = 160
M. Liv Tsun Kie BRESLE = = = = 16 = = 16
Mr. Yap Fat Suan Henry 22y e 144 = = = = = = 144

During the year, Mr. Lui Pan, Terry received
HK$2,087,000 in respect of his services rendered to
the Group in prior years.

REA - BmTERBEREFRARE
ERft 2 AR UER 2,087,000 7T B
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 25 {EEBRAMAXE
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s (b) EEREHAEBAEME B
emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of every Director for the year ended RBE_ZTMOF+_A=1t—HF
31st December 2004 is set out below: EEUESHNMESFROT
Compen-
Employer's sation
Discretion- contribution for loss
Name of ary Induce- Other to pension  of office
director Fees Salary bonuses  ment fee  benéfits (i) scheme  as director Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BiRGETE
EEHZ ok He BB NEHE EtfER) EBEHR BorE st

FET TET T FET TET FHT FET TET

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson SiRIERE - 120 - - 16 - - 136
M. Lui Pan, Terry BmEE - 1,920 80 - 311 12 - 2,323
Ms. Cheung Sum Yu, Fiona ROBR LT = = = = 20 = = 20
Mr. Shaw Sun Kan, Gordon ~ BFAELE - - - - 20 - - 20
M. Jerry Sze Jerry Sze 4 - - - - 20 - = 20
Mr. lizhak Shenberg lizhak Shenberg 24 - - - - - - - -
Mr. Chu Hon Pong REHFE 144 = = = 16 = = 160
M. Liv Tsun Kie AEERE = = = = 16 = = 16
M. Yap Fat Suan Henry 03l 36 = = = = = = 36
Note (i) Other benefits include share-based compensation W) EEfemBiiye  BRERS
expenses, staff quarter and club membership. Bg%-
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

25

The five individuals whose emoluments were the

highest in the Group for the year include one (2004:

one) director, whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above. The emoluments payable

to the remaining four (2004: four) individuals during

the year are as follows:

& REFIRAX (B

(c)

AUGESHAL
FRAREERRSIHALEE
B (CTTOEF - —f) - HeH
rER EX o FRRMN T EERI
(Z2Z=F : @) AL ZME W
T

Group
REE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EThF _TTMF
FHIT THT
(Restated)
(&%)
Basic salaries, share options, other EXE - Bk -
allowances and benefits in kind Hfbj2AE M B Y= 4,301 3,243
Discrefionary bonuses BB TEAL 162 141
Contributions to defined contribution M€ BEH FRET I
Mandatory Provident Fund RN 48 48
4,511 3,432
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

=1 )

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Confinued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

25 ERBEANX @)
() BRBEHFAL @)
&N T oI

Number of individuals
A
Emolument bands 2005 2004
[ el Y —ETRHF —EETF
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000 #&7T ] 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 &tz 2,000,000 &I 3 ]
26 FINANCE COSTS 26 RUIERE

Group

AEEH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EETRF —EEF
FATT FAT
Interest on bank loans Fi 130 1,053
Interest element of finance leases RMERE 2 FEEHD 7 7
137 1,060
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27

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27
No provision for Hong Kong and overseas profits tax has been

made in the accounts as the Group did not have any assessable

profit for the year (2004: Nil).

The taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic taxation
rate applicable to each of the Group companies as follows:

RIE

TPOF : ) - BRRE EREBEESEI
FMSTRIE LB

AR SR ERR A A BT 1R 2 A PR B P S R AN =
BASARIZALBR CRERFAEEE 2R
L EROME

Group

REH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
eSS T — e
TETT THET
(Restated)
(&5)
Loss before taxation PRt ATE IR (33,922) (55,757

Notional tax calculated at the rafes NBRBEZERZ

applicable in the countries concerned MEFTHE 2 ZEBIA (8,361) (6,097
Tax at preferential rate MEER - 2,088
Income not subject to taxation BABHA (16) (18)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes TRAIER £ FIIE 2 FX /174 585
Temporary difference not recognised REER Z Hrhs = 78 - 1,979
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 1A 2 Bl R R < Bii5 &8 (515) (1,997
Tax losses not recognised NHER 2 M5 e R 1,718 3,460
Taxation charge MIAR X - -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

R B Bi&E ()
28 PREFERENCE DIVIDENDS 28 @EEKRER
Group
REE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
e TR — s
TET TR
Dividends on 5% exchangeable preference AR R Z2EHNE A A
shares issued by DVN (Group) Limited, REHE (E8) BRAR
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company #1722 5% Al R#B IR 2 BB 5,812 5,812

29

30

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The loss attributable to ordinary shareholders is dealt with in the
accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$46,209,000
(2004 (restated): loss of HK$6,834,000).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
Group's loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
HK$39,734,000 (2004 (restated): HK$61,067,000) and on
the weighted average number of 580,948,967 (2004
485,992,615) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share is shown for the two years ended
31st December 2005 and 2004 as the share options and
exchangeable preference shares outstanding had an anti-dilutive

effect on the basic loss per share for both years.
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29

30

B R EGER

EFFARREIRE 2 EBRBEREHER
746,209,000/ 7T (ZZEZTMEF (F7) -
E186,834,000%7T) °

BREBR
FRENEIRIREAEE TR AR
E1839,734,000TT (ZZEZTWMF (&
5) = 61,067,000 7T) RERNDEITE B
IRz pnfEF 1528 (B1580,948,8671) (ZF
TP : 485,992,6150) 518 ©

HREE-_ZTTRF+-_A=+—HAKk=%
TNF+ - A=+—HIMEFERRITE
BRI R AR B S IR B IR E RSB R
REEEER - BURBSLZMEFE 2 8K
HEEE -



31 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 31 EEEEMRS

(a) Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash (a) REFEEKEERRESRLF
outflow from operations HAHx
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EERF  TTOF
FAT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Operating loss for the year FELEEE (39,734) 61,569)
Adjustments for: FEIEE
Depreciation e 17,078 18,953
Amortisation of infangilbles | A& EEE 4,569 4,729
Loss on disposal of property, HEYR - #as
plant and equipment K& imER - 23
Write-off of deferred development SRR I 25 P 2N 3
costs 1,112 -
Exchange differences M = RE 1,409 (254)
Share-based payment VAR 7 32 °HRR IR 1,333 1,333
Interest income F YA (1,449) (195)
Finance costs B E R A 137 1,060
Share of loss of jointly controlled entity & FRIEHIE 88 2 E518 275 1,032
Share of loss of an associate SME—EE QR 2 EE 130 -
Preference dividend proposed BRE TS 5,812 5,812
Changes in working capital: LEESE
Amounts due from related companies  FEWEHE X BIFKIE (160) (1,973)
Inventories FE (20,292) (12,226)
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 & EAth FE U 3k (69,908) (30,281)
Trade and other payables JERT B 5 K B FE AR 99,494 59,529
Cash used in operations LEFERACA® (194) (14,027)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

31 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (Continued) 31
(b) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, no fixed assefs were transferred to

inventory (2004: HK$17,706,000).

32 COMMITMENTS 32
(a) Capital commitments
Neither the Group nor the Company has significant

capital commitments at 31st December 2005 or 3 1st

December 2004.

(b) Operating lease commitments
At 31st December 2005, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

BEEEWHRAS (B)
(b) IEXRLXS

i
(a)

(b)

RER - WESETEESBEFE
h(ZZZTME - 17,706,000%
)

EXREE
RZZETRF+A=1T—Hzx%=F
TOF+-_A=+—H  AEERAK
REGEERE A o

RERNERE
R-ZFZTRAF+_A=+t—RH £&
Bs R A R B B RAX
Nz&EREAIT :

Lland and buildings

T REF

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

—ETERF —EETF

FHETT FHEIT

Not later than one year —F A 4,107 2,876
Later than one year and not —FUAE - AFUR

later than five years 1,457 2,420

5,564 5,296

The Company did not have any commitments under
operating lease at 31st December 2004 and 2005.
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32 COMMITMENTS (Confinued)

32 &ig(H)

(¢) Financial commitments (<) Eﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ
At 31st December 2005, the Group and the Company RZZBZAF+__A=1t—H &&
had financial commitments in respect of registered capital B RARRAERNPERE—RH (=
confributions to one [2004: one) subsidiary, one TENF  —fH)HBAR) - —H(C
associate (2004: one) and one (2004: one| jointly TTF  —E)BEARR—FE(C
controlled entity in the PRC as described below: TTNE - —fH) KREHER Y
BEFENT -
Group Company
REHE ZN/NC]
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—TERF —TTOF —TTHF —TTOF
THETT THETT TETT TET
Subsidiary (note {i)) B AR (MIEE() 8,906 8,830 - -
Jointly controlled entity HRZEHE R
(note {ii)) (BRFEE() 28,681 28,436 28,436 28,436
Associate G l/NE] 1,076 2,133 - -
38,663 39,399 28,436 28,436

(i)

(i)

Included in the financial commitment in respect of
registered capital contributions to a subsidiary is
an amount of RMB5,316,000 (approximately
HK$5,039,000) (2004: same) that was paid
before balance sheet date but the capital
verification process has not been completed. The
remaining balance has been overdue for capital
injection (2004: same).

The financial commitment in respect of registered
capital contributions to a jointly controlled
entity has been overdue for capital injection
(2004: RMB15,000,000, approximately
HK$14,218,000).

i} REBEEEFEE-—ENEEANE
P —EHB AR ZEME R L &R
(BEARZERFFHATK) HEAR
#5,316,0007T (#15,039,000/%7T)
(ZZZTWE - HF) - HECIHX
f (ZZETWmF : H8R) -

(i) HEEE AR —EEREGE ;%35
NEMER  YERBZH (=
e« AR¥15,000,0007T EII%’J
14,218,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

(a)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 FHREALXZS
The following transactions were carried out with related parties: ATRSTHEREALHETT
Sales or purchases of goods and services (a) HEIXBERRES
Year ended 3 1st December
BHET_A=T—HILFE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TTHE CZTTHEF
THETT T
Sales of goods S
— Group companies of a —— KRR ARZEE QT
shareholder company 2,299 -
Purchases of goods BE5BE
— Group companies of a ——XKBRRARIZEBE AT
shareholder company 28,165 1,611
— A jointly controlled entity ——RAREHEE 3,002 5,678
— A shareholder company ——KRRAF] 144 -
Licensing fee expense RIEER
— A shareholder company —— KR AA] 3,900 -
Preference dividend proposed BB SRR B
— A group company of a —— KRR ARIZEE AT
shareholder company 5,812 5,812

The price and conditions in relation to the sales and the
purchases were made under the same terms as the Group
trades with other non-related customers and suppliers,
respectively.
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33  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b)

(c)

of the Group

33 HHEALXH (B

Details of key management compensation (b)

TEEEAEHE

Year ended 3 1st December
HEt+-_A=T—"HILFE

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—_TERE _TTWHF
THETT THETT
Salaries and other shortterm benefits & & EH Ab5G HiE B 125 7,888 5,365
Share-based payments VAR A7 A BT B S A+ 533 533
8,421 5,898
Year-end balances arising from sales/ () REXRAHE HBRIZHUREE
purchases and service rendered £ R
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—_TERF __TTOEF
T T
Receivables FEMR
— Group companies of a — —XRRAFTZEE QA
shareholder company 1,695 -
— A jointly controlled entity — —RARZEHER 1,558 1,327
Payables FERTX
— Group companies of a — —FKRRAFZEERA
shareholder company 22,120 -
— A jointly controlled entity — —RAREHER 4,109 61
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Other year-end balances

33 HEAEALXZH (B
(d) HuHREGER

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
—TTHE CZTTHEF
THETT T
Other receivables HAth FEUTR
— Group companies of a — —KRRATIZEE LA
shareholder company 769 609
— A jointly controlled entity — —RHAREHEE 549 -
Other payables H A B FX
— Preference share dividend payable  — R —HKEKRERAFZ
fo a group company of a SERQABERAE
shareholder company 22,609 21,938

34 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The table below lists out the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give defails of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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34 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34 EMEBLFIHEGE

(Continued)

Nominal value of

Place of incorporation issued ordinary share/

and kind of legal entity preference share/
in the PRC registered capitol Principal activifies and
Name FajlipiiE ) ERTERR Interest held place of operation
AT TR B ATE ML BER/HMEAEE P TERBREE
DVN (Group] Limited BV US$10 ordinary 1100% Investment holding
AHEE (£8) ARAR RERUHEE US$15,000,000 preference WA

10X ERK

15,000,000 %7T2

Bk
DVN [Management] Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary "100% Provision of administrafive
RgiE (51%) ARAR BB 2B BB services in Hong Kong
NEAREITHRS
Dynamic Network Limited BVI US$T ordinary "100% Investment holding
RERUES | R EBR REZR
DVN Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary 1100% Services and design,
R FIER AR AR BB 2T BB infegration and

installation of digital
broadcasting equipment
and development of
related software and
products in Hong Kong
and southeast
Asian countries
RNEAERRARER
ETEISERRT -
REURRK - B - KR
RSN RERARE
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Confinved)
=1 )

34 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34 IEMEBLFIHEGE

(Continued)
Nominal value of
Place of incorporation issued ordinary share/
and kind of legal entity preference share/
in the PRC registered capital Principal activifies and
Name FajlipiiE ) ERTERR Interest held place of operation
AT TR B ATE ML BER/HMEAEE P TERBREE
Digital Video Networks Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary 1100% Holding of patents
R BB AR A BE 2B BB REENE
Cyber Cinema Technology Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary 100% Investment holding
Company Limited BE 2B EER RERK
R EIEEM AR ]
Campus.nef Technology Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary 100% Investment holding
Company Limited BE 2B EER RERK
R = REMABR A
Whizz Kid Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100% Investment holding
RERUES 1 XL EBR RERK
DVB Technology (Suzhou) PRC, equity RMB 100,000,000 70% Trading of digital
Company Limited joint venture registered capital broadcasting equipment
R EERAMT (FRMN) FE - SEEEAT] 100,000,000 L A R and related products
ARAR &R in the PRC
inaalzipA - e 2
RERBERR S
DVN Technology (Shenzhen) PRC, wholly- owned HK$6,000,000 100% Development of hardware
Co. limited foreign invesiment enferprise registered capital and software in relation
RgERE OR9) BRAR  FE IEEELE 6,000,000 #7T fo digital broadcasfing
&R in the PRC
iNaleid (a4
RERBERR S
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34

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

34 IEMBLFENGE)

(Continued)

Nominal value of

Place of incorporation issued ordinary share/

and kind of legal entity preference share/
in the PRC registered capitol Principal activities and
Name FajlipiiE ) ERTERR Interest held place of operation
AT W B )R AL BER/HMEAEE P TERBREE
Digital Video Networks PRC, wholly- owned US$8,000,000 100% Design, infegration and
Company Limited foreign investment enferprise registered capifal installation of digital
PN T 25 PE - SMEBELR 8,000,000 % 7T broadcasting equipment
(BM) BRAA &R and development of
related software and
products in the PRC
W EE TSR EERT -

RER - HE - £
RS RERNFE
Digital Video Networks PRC, wholly- owned US$5,000,000 100% Design, infegration and
(Shanghai) Company foreign investment enterprise registered capifal installation of digital
Limited hE - HEEERE 5,000,000 %7t broadcasfing equipment
RABTAERR (L&) &R and development of
BRAT related software and
products in the PRC
W EE TSR ERERY -
RER - HE - £

RS RERNFE
Telequote Data Infernational Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Provision of infernational
Limited BE ordinary financial market information
EENERERAT 10,000 &7t 2 L@ and selective consumer

data in Hong Kong
REERAER SRS
AR ERHEE SR
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)

iR BB sE ®

34 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

34 IEMBLFENGE)

(Continued)
Nominal value of
Place of incorporation issued ordinary share/
and kind of legal entity preference share/
in the PRC registered capital Principal activities and
Name FajlipiiE ) ERTERR Interest held place of operation
AT W B )R TE AL BER/HMEAEE P TERBREE
Telequote Network (Singapore) Singapore SGD2 ordinary 100% Provision of infernational
Pre. Limited % 2 ¥R TT 2 BRI financial market information
and selective consumer
data in Singapore
ARG EIRR 2 R
M5 &M R EE
HEERERS
Show Case Infernational Limited BVI US$T ordinary 100% Holding of film rights
RBRUES | R EBR in the PRC
RPERER A
Victory Beat Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100% Investment holding
RBRUES | R EBR REZK
Step Success Trading Company BVI US$1 ordinary 100% Investment holding
Limited RERUES | XL EBR RERK
1 Shares held directly by the Company. 1 BROBEEHARFRFE -
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